3:35: 33 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair

HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
April 8, 2011
3:35 p.m

Stoltze called the House Finance Conmittee neeting

to order at 3:35 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Bill Stoltze, Co-Chair
Bill Thomas Jr., Co-Chair
Anna Faircl ough, Vice-Chair
Ma Costello

M ke Doogan

Bryce Edgnon

Les Gara

David Guttenberg

Reggi e Joul e

Mar k Neuman

Tamm e W1 son

Peter Ecklund, Staff, Co-Chair Thomas; Representative Bob
Heron; Patty Mackey, ATIA Board; R chard Cole, Wngs of
Al aska; Susan Bel |, t he Depart nent of Comer ce,

Conmi ssi oner,

Communi ty and Economi ¢ Devel opnent.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Jul i e Saupe,

ATI A, Al an Lenmster,

VTS; Deb Hickok, Travel

| ndustry Associ ati on.

SUMVARY
HB 160

CSHB

pass"

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1

VI SI TOR | NDUSTRY | NVESTM T FUND/ MARKETI NG

160 was REPORTED out of Committee with a
recommendati on and with one new fi scal

"do
not e

04/08/11 3:35 P.M



from the Departnment of Commerce, Conmmunity and
Econom c Devel opnent and one new zero inpact note
fromthe Departnent of Revenue.

#hb160
HOUSE BILL NO. 160

"An Act establishing and relating to the Al aska
visitor industry investnent fund; relating to matching
funds for state tourism marketing contracts wth
qualified trade associations; and providing for an
effective date."

3:35:41 PM

Vi ce-chair Fairclough proposed commttee substitute, work
draft #27-LS0509/S. Co-Chair Stoltze OBJECTED for the
pur pose of di scussion.

PETER ECKLUND, STAFF, REPRESENTATVIE THOWVAS, discussed the
Commttee Substitute (CS). He presented a sectional
analysis. M. Ecklund explained that Section 1 would be
addressed later in the presentation. Section 2 changes the
date required to enter an initial contract with a Qualified
Trade Association (QrA) from April 1st to June 1st. On
April 1st, the legislature is typically in session. By June
1st, the legislature is typically adjourned and the
appropriation for the QTA will be known. If the current |aw
remai ned the same, the QIA reverts back to a 50/50 match on
July 1, 2011. The legislation proposes a $2 state
contribution for every $1 industry match.

3:38: 39 PM

M. Ecklund stated that Section 3 condenses the board from
32 to 9 nenbers. Three nmenbers would be selected by the
governor from the cruise lines for service of three year
terms. Six nenbers would be selected by the Alaska Travel
| ndustry Association (ATIA) menbership. Two of the nenbers
are required from tourism entities that enploy fewer than
50 people. One nmenber nust cone from an entity enploying
between 51 and 250 people. One board nenber nmust cone from
an entity enploying greater than 250 people. Two nenbers
are "at large,” and all six nenbers are selected by the
menbershi p of the QTA

3:39: 54 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 04/08/11 3:35 P. M



M. Ecklund continued that Section 4 adds a restriction
stating that an entity receiving state funds through the
contract cannot enploy a person to |obby the |egislature
regardi ng the funding of the contract.

M. Ecklund stated that Section 5 repeals 44.33.125(d)
which states that an appropriation of section (d) is left
up to the Conm ssioner of the Departnment of Conmerce,
Community and Econom c Devel opnent (DCCED) to determ ne
whether a match is required or not. Section 6 is a
transition section for the nenbers appointed by the
governor. Section 7 states an effective date of July 1,
2011.

3:41: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BOB HERON stated that the version presented
by the Economc Developnent Trade and Tourism (EDT)
committee contained a task force provision. Since then the
house mpjority |eader introduced HB 222, which w Il becone
an interimproject for the coonmttee. He believed that the
formul a had good nerit.

Co-Chair Stoltze appreciated the work done on the
| egi sl ati on. He appl auded the solution and the process.

3:42:31 PM

Representative Doogan provided an exanple with the state
contributing $12 mllion and the industry contributing $6
mllion. M. Ecklund concurred that the exanple was valid.

Represent ati ve Doogan asked about a provision in the event
that the industry does not pay their share. M. Ecklund
replied that if the industry contributes $4 nillion, it
would receive $8 mllion of the $12 appropriated by the
| egi sl ature.

3:43:17 PM

Representative Gara asked about the history of state and
industry contributions. He recalled that the cruise ship
i ndustry contributed $5 mllion last year. M. Ecklund
directed the question to the comm ssioner of DCCED.

3:44: 21 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 04/08/11 3:35 P. M



Representative Gara asked about a task force created to
devise a plan for nore stable financing. Representative
Herron replied that Representative Austerman's pronotion
and marketing comm ssion discussed the potential of a task
force over the interim to devise a long term plan to
address tourism mnmarketing appropriations. The proposed
| egislation contained the perfect vehicle for the EDT
commttee to enploy during the interim The plan is for the
commttee to visit different regions of the state to invite
st akehol ders to revi ew Representative Aust erman’' s
| egi sl ation, suggest changes, and revisit the issue in
January. The commttee would act in lieu of a task force.

3:46: 33 PM
Representative Gara pointed out that the bill had no sunset
date. Representative Herron replied that if the bill does

not pass, the match would revert back to 50/50 despite the
contribution on July 1, 2011.

Representative Gara asked if the reversion back to the
50/50 match is witten in the bill. M. Ecklund stated that
the bill is intended to provide a |long term sol ution.

Representative Costello thanked Representative Herron for
the recognition of the inportance of tourism marketing. She
stated that the noney spent on tourism market is an
investment and an inportant part of the state's econony.
She stated that her constituents appreciate the opportunity
to continue their tourism marketing.

Co-Chair Stoltze WTHDREW his OBJECTION. There being NO
OBJECTION, it was so ordered.

3:49: 03 PM

JULI E SAUPE, ATIA (via teleconference), stated that she was
avai |l abl e for questions.

ALAN LEMASTER, VTS (via teleconference), testified in
opposition to the CS. He spoke about his many tines
testifying on this issue. He discussed the variety of
proposals nmade to build long term marketing prograns and
grow sustained visitation to Alaska. Mny efforts were
denied. He commented on the CS before the commttee, in
particular the condensation of the 30 nenber nmarketing
council. He mentioned that the current council is nade up
of dedicated volunteers from across the state. The

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 04/08/11 3:35 P. M



dedi cated volunteers neet often to develop prograns. He
requested approval of the original |egislation as proposed
by Governor Parnell, which would allow the |egislature and
the industry to develop a permanent perennial solution to
serve all of Al askans.

3:52:44 PM

PATTY  MACKEY, ATIA BOARD wshed to wirk wth the
| egislature and the admnistration to earn support for
sustained funding to market Alaska. The tangible benefits
of the tourism industry include jobs for Alaskans and
opportunities for independent business ownership. She
hi ghli ghted the increased understanding of Al aska provided
by tourism efforts. She spoke about the value of nagazine
and internet adverti sing.

3:56: 20 PM

Representative Gara asked about declining state revenue
fromtourismtaxes. He understood that nost ATIA nmenbers do
not pay state taxes. Ms. Mackey clarified that sone tourism
entities pay corporate tax, but not Ilocal nmunicipality
t axes.

Representative Gara asked about the history of the state
and industry match. M. Mckey stated that the spending
history was erratic. She stated that the npbst recent natch
is 70/30. She nentioned a 50/50 and a 60/40 match in the
past. Representative Gara asked about the 70/30 match. Ms.
Mackey responded that the 30 percent was the industry
contri bution.

3:57: 56 PM

RI CHARD COLE, W NGS OF ALASKA, testified in support of any
sustai ned investnent in marketing for tourismin Al aska. He
spoke about his business. He believed that an investnent in
Al askan tourismis an investnment in all Al askan businesses
as well as infrastructure. He added that his business
offers flight service to many small communities.

4:00: 25 PM

SUSAN BELL, THE DEPARTMENT OF COWERCE, COW SSI ONER

COMMUNI TY AND ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT, commented that the
department and governor are comritted to the tourism
i ndustry. She provided a brief history of the marketing

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 04/08/11 3:35 P. M



efforts and state support. The governor would |Iike
mai nt enance of the $16 mllion investment in an effort for
further econom c recovery.

4:02:40 PM

Comm ssi oner Bel | responded to Representative Gara's
guestions. She pointed out that the industry previously
contributed via voluntary contributions from the cruise
lines, destination marketing organizations, and the
busi nesses that participate in the state's prograns. She
noted significant changes on the visitor industry such as
the vehicle rental tax and the ballot initiative passed in
2006. Over the last decade, the forner $5 mllion in
i ndustry contributions was reduced to $2.7 mllion.

4:04:19 PM

Representative Gara asked if last year's state contribution
was 50 percent. Conm ssioner Bell responded that the
| egi slature nade a change after the ballot initiative in
2006 to reinstate a 70/30 match with the 30 being the
i ndustry contributions. That provision would expire July 1,
2011.

Representative Gara asked when the last tinme the match was
50/ 50. Comm ssioner Bell responded that the last tinme was
in 2004. He added that the industry paid increased fees and
taxes during that tinmne.

4:05:48 PM

Representative Gara asked for a historical state share of
the contribution. He understood that the state share is

estimated to be approximately $12 nmillion this year. He
asked about the state share in dollar contribution for the
past two years. Conm ssioner Bell responded that the

state's contribution for the current fiscal year was $16
mllion. The wprior fiscal year's contribution was $9
mllion. She offered to follow up with the conmttee to
confirmthe nunbers.

Co-Chair Thomas asked if HB 160 was the governor's bill
Comm ssioner Bell responded that the bill was a conmttee
bill. The appreciation is nore appropriately directed to
Representative Heron and the EDT conmitt ee.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 04/08/11 3:35 P. M



Co- Chair Thomas pointed out that if the bill does not pass,
the marketing plan for the industry would be $5.4 nillion
versus the requested $2.7 mllion.

4:07:42 PM

Co- Chair Thomas commented on the creation of a plan that
elimnates the 50/50 match. Co-Chair Stoltze added that the
alternative approach was agreed upon. He believed that the
conprom se allowed for inprovenent of cooperation between
the state and the industry in this |legislative body.

Representative Costello noted that the tourism industry
contributed $138 nmillion to the state budget and $69.8
mllion in nunicipal revenues. She viewed the state
contribution as an investnent.

Representative Doogan wunderstood that the bill would
contribute $12 mllion to the industry if the industry
cones up with $6 mllion. |If the industry contributes |ess
noney, then the state will pay the two to one ratio of the
contri buted anount . Comm ssi oner Bel | agr eed t hat
Represent ati ve Doogan under st ood t he nmechani sm

Representati ve Doogan asked if the anount that the industry
agrees to contribute is $2.7 nmllion, then the state
contributes twice the anount. Conm ssioner Bell concurred
and cited a total contribution of $8.1 mllion in the event
of an industry contribution of $2.7 mllion.

4:11:15 PM

M. Ecklund discussed the fiscal note. He nentioned one
m nor technical inprovenent needed for the fiscal note. He
commented that the departnent affected was DCCED but the
appropriation should state "qualified trade association" as
opposed to "econom c devel opnent . "

Vice-chair Fairclough MOVED to report CSHB 160 out of
commttee W th i ndi vi dual reconmendat i ons and t he
acconpanying fiscal note(s). There being NO OBJECTION, it
was so ordered.

CSHB 160 was REPORTED out of Conmttee with a "do pass”
recommendation and wth one new fiscal note from the
Department of Commerce, Community and Econom c Devel opnent
and one new zero inpact note fromthe Departnment of Revenue.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 04/08/11 3:35 P. M



#
ADJ OURNIVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 4:13 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 04/08/11 3:35 P. M



